


Disclaimer

Information contained in this document is based on available information at the time of writing.
All figures and diagrams are indicative and should be referred to as such. Whilst Mapoon
Aboriginal Shire Council has exercised, reasonable care in preparing this document to represent
that it is totally accurate or complete, Council or its officers accept no responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting in reliance upon any material.

ABN: 15 093 924 706

Website: www.mapoon.qgld.gov.au

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/MASC4874

Call our Office: 07 4082 5200

Postal Address: Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council, Red Beach Road, Mapoon QLD 4874



http://www.mapoon.qld.gov.au/
https://www.facebook.com/MASC4874
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Our Welcome

Welcome to the Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council’s Annual Report 2021 - 2022. This
Report provides an insight into the Council’s achievements and the standards of
delivering services to the Mapoon Community and region. The Report also shows
progress in delivering the actions set out from the Corporate Plan 2018 - 2023 and the
Operational Plan 2021 - 2022. The Annual Report is one of the ways the Council
connects with the community and is the culmination of regular reporting.

It shows:
» Council’'s commitment to achieving its vision for the region
* The result of actioning the Corporate and Operational Plans
 Details of Council’'s achievements
 Details of the services that have been provided to the region

About this Report

Designed to foster a vibrant, culturally rich community where local government
services and facilities are delivered in a way that is responsive to the needs and
aspirations of the community, this Annual Report compares our performance against
what we said we would do in the 2021 - 2022 financial year and provides an account of
all our activities and other relevant and required information.

The sentiment of our agenda is the community we serve and the trust that rests with
Council to preserve the region’s outstanding cultural values, natural assets and our
environment for current and future generations. Through good governance, good
decision making, compliance of legislative obligations, community engagement, risk
management strategies, financial management and customer services we have
excelled in what we set in our Operational Plan. Through the facilities we deliver and
maintain for our community — from sporting fields to community halls to the important
work we do with our residents in protecting our foreshores, maintaining our public
parks and gardens and working to improve the health and quality of our waterways.
This is the day-to-day work of the Council that often goes unnoticed but is a crucial
part of ensuring the richness and vitality of our community and way of life is
consistently improving. The Council’s partnerships across the community in many of
these services and initiatives are a testament not only to the dedication and
commitment of our staff but also the personal investment that our community is
making in its own future.
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Message from the Mayor

MAYOR AILEEN ADDO

Last financial year has been a challenging year for our
Council with Covid and ensuring that our building
and other programs were implemented. We have had
a variety of meetings on a continual basis throughout
and have had to regularly update our Disaster Plans to
coincide with the directions of the of the Chief Health
Officer.

5 Council CEO Naseem Chetty has been on extended leave
this year, Acting CEO Steve Linnane filled the seat during this time, | am grateful
for his assistance.

The Thriving Communities Committee was established this year and | am very
grateful for our community members Jerry Burke, Ricky Guivarra, Ailsa Ling,
Polly Smith and Diane Ludwick for putting their hands up to be part of the
committee along with Deputy Mayor Cameron Hudson and myself. Cr Kiri Tabuai
was also part of the committee before she became a councillor. The Committee
looks at all aspects of the service delivery from the State Government and the
Community Safety Plan.

A variety of capital projects which have been undertaken. The following projects
were started and were significantly underway during the financial year were
commenced and well towards completion by June 2022.

- Mapoon Church was commenced this financial year and was opened in
December 2021

-  The new Aged Care facility which has four two independent living units

- The Cultural Centre

- Four new units at the Paanja Lodge

- Five new Social Houses

- New Barge Ramp

In the Financial Year 21/22 all the above projects will be completed. We are
looking forward to the commencement of the following projects in 22/23:

- The new Retail Store

- New Disaster Control Centre

- New Turtle Interpretative centre and Rangers Offices
- Social Housing — Five (5) Residences
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Council continues to encourage local businesses and attract businesses to our
community which will develop more job opportunities. We endeavour and
encourage community members to develop skills by participating in training and
skills development.

Council has received again an unqualified audit from the Queensland Audit
Office. This highlights that council continues to deliver quality financial and
operational systems/processes and will continue to strengthen this into the future.

The Council has been getting some very good feedback on the Rangers
programme and | would like to congratulate the staff in the area. The Building
Team led by Tom Smith have been very busy as well. All the staff including the
admin staff have been enormously productive during the year and | do thank them
for their efforts.

| want to thank all my Councillors for an incredible year. Deputy Mayor
Cameron Hudson and the Councillors have been working hard and
attending many productive meetings and community events. | would also like
to thank Margaret Mara for her service to the community up until her
resignation and congratulate Cr Kiri Tabuai on her appointment to Council.

Mayor
Aileen Addo




Our Councillors

Following the Queensland Local Government By - election on the 6" °f September
2021, we welcomed in our newly elected member Cr Kiri Tabuai who replaced
Margaret Mara.

Cr Daphne De Cr Cameron Cr Dawn CR Kiri

Mayor Aileen
y Jersey Hudson Braun Tabuai

Addo

Our duty as elected councillors, as part of the governing body of a council, is
spelled out in section 12 of the Queensland Local Government Act 2009. Our
Council

®* Represents the current and future interests of the residents of Mapoon and
ensure these aspirations are actioned in a timely fashion.

® All councillors have the following responsibilities—

a. ensuring the localgovernment—
i. discharges its responsibilities under this Act; and
i. achieves its corporate plan;and
i. complies with all laws that apply to local governments

b. providing high-quality leadership to the local government and the
community

c. participatingin councilmeetings, policy development,and decision-
making, for the benefit of the local government area

d. being accountable to the community for the local government’s
performance




All our Councillors play a key role to make sure there is effective consultation with the
community and therefore ensure that project planning and outcomes are aligned with
community expectations. To ensure effective community consultation each of our
Councillors have a portfolio to attend to with the community.

Navigating such a strategic role whilst balancing community and organisational politics
can be very challenging for our Councillors, and we can all be proud of the way Council
has carried itself and gone about business during 2021 - 2022.

Our Councillors portfolio allocations are as follows:

Mayor Addo — Housing, Health & Aged Care, Social Events and Emergency Services
Councillor Braun — Enterprise Development, Education and Social Events
CouncillorDeJersey — Land & Sea, Community Safety & Justice and Social Events
Councillor Tabuai — Community Services and Social Events

CouncillorHudson — Committee Memberfor WCCCA, Alcan Ely Bauxite Mine Trust
and Social Events

MAPOON ABORIGINAL SHIRE COUNCIL REGION

Mapoon is located on the western side of Cape York, 960km northwest of Cairns
and 75km north of Weipa. Road access is often closed during the wet season.
Mapoon covers an area of 530km?2.

There are 6 Clan estates clustered intensively along the narrow coastal flood plain
and occupying a very large expanse in the forest and savannah woodland country
of the upland.

Mapoon is located at the site of the former Batavia River Mission that was
established at Cullen Point in 1891 on the traditional lands of the Tjungundji people.
Within a few years, the Mission became known as Mapoon, believed to be an
anglicised translation of a Tjungundji word meaning ‘place where people fight on
the sandhills’. Founding Moravian Missionaries, James Gibson Ward and Reverend
John Nicholas Hey, bought several South Sea Islander men to Mapoon as
assistants. Many children from the Gulf region were removed to Mapoon by the
Government when the Mission became an Industrial School in 1901. Around this
time, Aboriginal groups from the Pine and Pennefather Rivers began moving into
the Mission as the reserve was expanded south to incorporate the traditional lands
of the Thanakwithi people. For these reasons, Mapoon is an ethnically diverse
community.
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The traditional owners/custodians in Mapoon are the Tjungundji (Choong-un-gee)
peoples. Traditional Owners/Custodians recognised within the Mapoon Deed of Grant
in Trust area:

* Mbakwithi (Buck-with-ee)
® Teapathiggi (Tyap-a-thig-ee)
® Thanakwith (Thun-a-kwith)
® Tjungundji (Choong-un-gee)
®* Warrangku (Waarr-ang-ku)
®* Yupungathi (U-pun-ga-thee)
The predominant languages spoken in Mapoon are Creole and English.

Progressively since the late 1970s as people returned to Mapoon, our infrastructure
and utilities have continued to be upgraded and now we have public utilities and
infrastructure the community can be proud of. We have a high standard of reticulated
town water supply and power is delivered by Ergon and we have recently had an
upgrade to 4G from Telstra. Our new airstrip is all-weather with an automatic
lighting system and is suitable for charter and emergency flights. We continue to
expand our bitumen road network and we have secured funding for an
upgrade of our landfill to incorporate a transfer station.

OUR COUNCIL TEAM
We have developed a Council team of many nationalities and cultures and have a
very diverse mix in our workplace. Despite being a group of people with different
expertise and life experience we are able through robust discussion, planning and
innovative approaches to work in harmony achieving successful outcomes. This
unique mix of people comes together to help make our organisation sustainable and
progressive.

Our focus for the 2021 - 2022 Financial Year has been Economic Development &
Infrastructure Development. Two of our key issues and focus areas are
environmental management, including feral animal management and control as well
as tourism and visitor management. Our aims are to improve our economic climate
and encourage entrepreneurs toward venturing out to business development and
provision of visitor management signage to educate and encourage tourists to
respect the country and its custodians.
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INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT

Financial Year 21-22 was again busy with the completion of a number of larger
projects, planning and design was well underway for both the new ranger base and
waste transfer station with works to commence early 2023 to both sites.

Numerous projects have progressed or been completed including:

e The Five new Social Houses on
Weipa Road

e New Retail Store

e New Ranger Base development

e New Transfer Station development

e The Cultural Centre

e Extension to Paanja Lodge
accommodation 4x2 bedroom

cottages

e Barge Ramp Upgrade

e New 1.2 Megalitre Water Storage
Tank

New store on Wheeler street
Budget $2.4 M
Expected completion 2023

Paanja Lodge Expansion

e 4x2 bedroom units

e Covered carparking

e Small solar farm

e Completion was June 2022 with
a budget of $1.1 mil




ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

The Environmental Services, Rangers and Parks and Gardens have had a busy and
productive year including attending to matters of;

BIOSECURITY

Coastal Surveillance trips take place on a regular basis, targeting marine
debris hotspots along with surveillance of any foreign matter that washes up
on Mapoon’s coastlines. All GPS locations, observations and photos sent
through via the Biosecurity Top Watch App.

Rangers have partnered with Biosecurity in a IRCCP (Indigenous Rangers
Coastal Clean-up Project). This involves major marine debris clean-ups
conducted in areas that have previously been untouched. Stakeholders from
the area that include Border Force, QLD Police, Rio Tinto, Metro Mining join
Rangers in this massive effort to dispose of tons of debris collected.

WATER QUALITY

This year Rangers completed a certification in Water Quality Testing, allowing
them to better understand all aspects of this field. Rangers have set GPS
locations at the mouth of all river systems allowing them to monitor and
compare data from previous assessments.

Water Quality checks are also conducted in 9 swamp systems within the area.
Many observations are made, and data taken to assess the condition of these
areas, ensuring they remain healthy.

COMMUNITY

Rangers work with Western Cape College Mapoon Campus in providing a
Junior Rangers program. The lessons are very informative, providing students
with an insight of the Rangers important work and any other topics that are
relevant to our area. E.g., Crocodile awareness, turtle monitoring, marine
debris and animal species found within the area.

This year Western Cape Clontarf Academy Leadership program joined
Rangers on several occasions, encouraging students to work hard at school,
and one day become a Ranger and Care for Country.
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VISITOR MANAGEMENT

Day use and barge ramp areas cleaned and maintained weekly.

Facilities at Cullen Point Campground are cleaned and maintained throughout
the visitor season along with regular permit checks ensuring visitors comply.

Janie Creek and Batavia campgrounds are closed, and Rangers conduct
weekly patrols to ensure closures are adhered to.

FIRE MANAGEMENT

Ranger’s conduct controlled on ground burning of the inland areas around
Fish Creek, Turtle Yard, and Batavia. Rangers follow their fire permit
requirements, along with recording a GPS location of every ignition point.

A lot of 183,00 hectares of country is inaccessible, Rangers also conduct
Aerial Incendiary burning in those areas. Three Rangers achieved their
certifications as Aerial Bombardiers this year.

CULTURAL HERITAGE MAINTENANCE

Rangers maintain year-round the Old Peoples Resting Place, Old Cemetery,
New Cemetery along with the First Contact Site and the Unmarked Grave
sites. New sighage was placed at the fenced sites.

PARKS AND GARDENS

Water supply now available to all garden beds within the community with some
having sprinkler systems with timers fitted. The beds then then be watered in
the cooler periods to avoid water evaporation.

Parks and Gardens employees work hard to maintain Anzac Park, Council
Yard, Contractors Dongas, Nature Strips, Paanja Lodge, Cultural Centre, and
the Church. They are also responsible for the Recreational Hall, Aged Care
Facility along with Aged Care Clients.

Roadside rubbish pickups conducted every week from Cullen Point to the
Airport.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council is committed to fostering good governance and sound
management practices within all its operational processes and service delivery.

With a strong focus and the implementation of ethical procedures, managers have
increased ownership and responsibility, resulting in smoother project delivery. Internal
control processes have been reviewed and updated to exceed compliance with
legislation and create effective business management.

Indigenous 36 72%

Non-Indigenous 14 28%

= [ndigenous = Non-indigenous

Male 31 62%
Female 19 38%

= Male = Female

Employees Total 50| 100%

Casual 7 14% ‘
Part Time 6 12%
Full Time 37 74%

m Casual = Part-time = Full-time




COMMUNITY SERVICES

Community Aged & Disability Services are currently providing services to clients based
under the following programs;

1. CHSP Commonwealth Home Support
2. HCP Home Care Packages
3. QCSS QId Community Care Services

4. CDSS Department of Communities Disability and Seniors-Community Transport

There was a total of 32 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander clients participating in the
programs.

Delivery has included Meals, Transport, Domestic Assistance, Personal Care, Home
Maintenance,

Gardening and Safety, Social Support Group and Social Support Individual, Flexible
Respite.

Training- Funding for staff enrolled in Cert Il Individual Support will be managed by the
Council.

Services for Social Support Group Activities and Pension Bus Runs into Weipa have
been reinstated.

Support services with Meal’s delivery, Domestic Assistance, and local transportation in
community have been reintroduced.

Recent changes to funding based on reimbursement of activities and performance
reporting were also announced during the year.
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PLAYGROUP

The Playgroup Program is currently federally funded. Children participated
with their parents in activities either indoors or outdoors.

Activities included healthy eating information and presentation, identification
learning and pronunciation, expressional drawing and name spelling on
items produced.

Encouraging parents to participate in their children’s learning has been a
major focus during the year. We have utilised Apunipima Primary Health to
give educational health sessions to families regarding healthy eating and
children’s teeth hygiene.

We have had Maternal Child and Health visit mums for antenatal visits, this
has been an informal way of mums partaking in check-ups. Aim to see more
of this in the future.

ACCOMMODATION SERVICES

Four new Cabins at Paanja Lodge were completed and brought into
service. Visitors from across Australia have booked these Cabins and
enjoyed the atmosphere these have brought to Mapoon.

The Cabins are enjoying a significant improvement in occupation since The
Cape has opened and COVID protocols have been relaxed. Occupancy at
the Contractor’'s Dongas have seen a downturn in business due to the drop
in conditions of the rooms.

MAPOON CULTURAL CENTRE

The Cultural Centre has been opened; and the Indigenous Knowledge
Centre located at the Cultural Centre was also opened and set up for use by
community members.

The Centre includes a library with a range of books, videos and games that
are suitable for all age groups. The Centre also has computers which will
enable visitors to access websites to conduct and monitor activities to do
with personal information and other government agencies.
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FITNESS CENTRE

Although limited, the Mapoon Fitness Centre has had some success
throughout the year with support from PCYC staff as an instructional trainer.

Gym membership fees were reduced during COVID but has been returned
to normal fees.

FACILITIES PROVIDED TO COUNCILLORS

Section 186 (b) of the Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012
requires an Annual report must detail particular information about facilities
provided to Councillors.

Councillor Facility provided

Mayor Addo Mayor’s Office, vehicle, telephone, IT, corporate clothing,
travel

Councillor Braun Telephone, IT, office space, corporate, clothing, travel

Councillor Hudson Telephone, IT, office space, corporate clothing, travel

Councillor De Jersey Telephone, IT, office space, corporate clothing, travel
Councillor Mara Telephone, IT, office space, corporate clothing, travel

Councillor Tabuai Telephone, IT, office space, corporate clothing, travel

EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT POLICY

Section 186 (c) of the Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012
requires an Annual report must detail particular information about
Councils Expenses Reimbursement Policy.

“Councils Local Government’s Expenses Reimbursement Policy is reviewed
annually and is made available to Councillors, staff, and the public via
Council’'s website http:// www.mapoon.qgld.gov.au.

The policy is reviewed annually to maintain its integrity and ensure it meets
the standards required and the policy was last reviewed as per Council
Resolution NO. 116/2020 VERSION V2
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COUNCILLOR MEETING ATTENDANCE

Section 186 (d) of the Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012 requires an
Annual report must detail particular information about the number of meetings each
Councillor attended during the financial year.

Councillor No. of Meetings
attended

Mayor Addo 12

Councillor Hudson 9

Councillor Braun 12

Councillor de Jersey 11

Councillor Mara
Councillor Tabuai 9

COMPLAINTS MADE ABOUT COUNCILLORS

Section 186 (g) of the Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012 requires an
Annual report must detail particular information about the number of complaints
about Councillors received during the financial year.

The number of each of the following during the financial year—

Complaints about the conduct or performance of Councillors for which no
further action was taken under section 176C (2) of the Act - One

Complaints referred to the Department’s Chief Executive under section 176C (3)
(a)(i) of the Act -Nil

Complaints referred to the Mayor under section 176C (3)(a)(ii) or (b)(i) of the
Act

Nil

Complaints referred to the Department’s Chief Executive under section176C (4)
of the Act - Nil




Complaints assessed by the Chief Executive Officer as being about official
misconduct — Nil

Complaints heard by a Regional Conduct Review Panel — Nil
Complaints heard by the Tribunal - Three

Complaints to which section 176C (6) of the Act applied - Nil

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION COMPLAINTS

Section 187 (1) of the Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012 requires an
Annual report must detail particular information about the number of Administrative
Action complaints received during the financial year.

“Council has developed a fair and transparent process and policy for dealing
with administrative action complaints. Policy is reviewed annually and is made
available to Councillors, staff, and the public via Council’s website. The policy is
reviewed annually to maintain its integrity and ensure it meets the standards
required. The policy has been developed with a draft to be tabled at the
November 2020 Ordinary Meeting of Council for approval. The policy will then
be available via Council’'s website - http://www.mapoon.qld.gov.au or from the
Council Office at Mapoon.

Furthermore, Section 187 (2) of Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012
sets out the requirement to report additional information regarding administrative
action complaints during the financial year as follows.

Complaints made to the local government— Nil

Complaints resolved by the local government under the complaint’s
management process - Nil

Complaints not resolved by the local government under the complaint’s
management process —Nil

Complaints under paragraph (a)(iii) that were made in a previous financial year -
Nil
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COMPETITIVE NEUTRALITY PRINCIPLE APPLIED TO SIGNIFICANT
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Council did not conduct any significant business activities during the 2021-2022
financial year.

OVERSEAS TRAVEL

Section 188 of the Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012 requires an
Annual report must detail particular information about any overseas travel made by
a councillor or local government employee in an official capacity during the financial
year.

* The name of the councillor - Nil

+ The name of, and position held by, the local government employee - Nil
* The destination of the overseas travel — Not applicable

* The purpose of the overseas travel — Not applicable

* The cost of the overseas travel — Not applicable

EXPENDITURE ON GRANTS TO COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS

Section 189 of Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012 requires an Annual
report must detail particular information about the Local Government’s expenditure
on grants to community organisations asfollows:

NIL

|
+ The local government’s expenditure for the financial year on grants to

community organisations

* The name of each community organisation to which an amount was allocated
from the fund; and

* The amount and purpose of the allocation.

NB - It should be noted that individual Councillors do not have a discretionary fund
to make allocations for community grants.




COUNCILLOR EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT AND FACILITIES POLICY
SECTION 185 (a) (b) LGR 2012

Council adopted the Councillors Expenses Reimbursement on 21 June 2022
and a copy of the resolution is provided below in accordance with section 250
of the Local Government Regulation 2012. The Procurement Policy outlines the
requirements under section 206 (2) of the Local Government Regulation 2012
and is included in the same resolution.

RESOLUTION C104/22

Ioved Cr Cameron Hudson
Seconded: Cr Kiri Tabuai

That the Councillor Expense RBeimbursement Policy be adopted
CARRIED

FINANCIAL PLANNING AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Section 190 of the Queensland Local Government Regulation 2012 outlines the
requirement for the annual report to contain the following information which is not
covered elsewhere in thisreport.

* Details of any action taken for, and expenditure on, a service, facility, or activity

(i) supplied by another local government under an agreement for
conducting a joint government Activity - Nil

(ii) for which the local government levied special rates or charges for the
financial year - Nil

* The number of invitations to change tenders under section 228(7) during the
financial year - Nil

+ Alist of the registers kept by the local government — Councils list of Registers is
under constant review and is currently available on Council’s website at
https://www.mapoon.qgld.gov.au

* A summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by the local
government — Not applicable

* The report on the Internal Audit for the financial year — Councils Internal Audit
Report is currently available from the Council Office Mapoon or from Council’s
QAO auditors Grant Thornton upon request.

+ A statement about the local government’s activities during the financial year to
implement its plan for equal opportunity in employment — Council continues to be
very proactive in promoting equal employment opportunity in employment and
this can be seen by the diversity and balance of our workforce. Council’s Equal
Employment Opportunity Policy is currently under review to maintain our high
standards in this respect.
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A summary of investigation notices given in the financial year under section 48
for competitive neutrality complaints — Nil

COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT FOR 2021 - 2022

The Community Financial Report is a plain English summary of Council's
Financial Statements prepared in accordance with Section 179 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.

2021/22 SNAPSHOT

Key highlights of the 2021/22 financial year include:

» The continued upgrading of council facilities, including a new retail store
* The completion of the cultural centre

 The completion of the staff accommodation

* The upgrading of barge ramp

* The expansion of short stay accommodation

* The construction of 5 social houses

ABOUT COUNCIL'S END OF YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

What you will find in the Financial Statements

The Audited Financial Statements of Council set out the financial performance,
financial position, cash flows and the net wealth of Council for the financial year
ended 30 June 2022.

About the Management Certificate

The Financial Statements must be certified by both the Mayor and the Chief
Executive Officer as "presenting fairly" the Council's financial results for the
year and are required to be adopted by Council - ensuring both responsibility
for and ownership of the Financial Statements by management and elected
representatives.

About the Financial Statements

The Financial Statements incorporate 4 "primary" financial statements and
accompanying notes which are as follows.

A Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Statement of Comprehensive Income is a summary of Council's financial
performance for the year, listing both regular income and expenses and other
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comprehensive income which records items such as changes in the fair values
of Council's assets and investments.

A Statement of Financial Position

The Financial Position is a snapshot of what the Council owns (Assets) and
owes (Liabilities).

A Statement of Changes in Equity

Equity is the Council's "net wealth", it is what the council owns once liabilities
are taken away from assets. The Statement of Changes In Equity details the
overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council's "net wealth".

A Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows indicates where Council's cash came from and
where it was spent.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Provides greater detail to the line numbers of the 4 "primary" financial

statements.

About the Auditor's Reports

Council's Financial Statements are required to the audited by the Queensland
Audit Office (QAO). The audit of many Queensland Councils is contracted to
Audit firms that specialise in Local Government. The Auditor provides an audit
report which gives an opinion on whether the Financial Statements present
fairly the Council's financial performance and position.

Internal Audit Function Section LGR s190(1)(h)
Council’s internal audit function is undertaken by Altius Advisors.

The internal audit program focused on assisting Council in addressing the
follow areas:

» Review of implementation and process for recording revenue under
AASB15 and 1058.

* Assets —review of indexation and assistance with preparation and update
of asset register.

* Position Paper — Provision for landfill restoration.

* QAO General Purpose Financial Statement preparation.
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An Overview of this year's Financial Result & Financial Position

Council's Statement of Comprehensive Income (Profit & Loss) for
2021/22

Council's Operating Result 2021/22
Council's headline operating result for the 2021/22 year was $6.890M surplus.

Actual Budget
$ '000 2022 2022
Revenues (Excluding revaluation of leases) 13,592 23,848
Expenditure 12,234 24,153
Net Result before Revaluation of leases 1,359 - 306
Revaluation of assets 5,531 -
Net Operating Result 6,890 - 306

The council's surplus for 2021/22 was $6.890M. The budgeted surplus once capital
expenditure had been capitalised was $306K. The variance is due to the asset
revaluation. Overall Council & Management believe the financial result for 2021/22
to be satisfactory.

Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Income iFees and charges

Income (000s)

W Renlalincoms

Fees and charges 35 0% -

Rental income 547 4% e Hinieratmmhed
Interest received 16 0% B v
Sales revenue 2,346 17%

Otherincome 195 1% -

Grants, subsidies, contributions

and donations 5,515 41% @Other ircome
Capital Revenue 4,937 36% B

Total Income 13,591 100%

Expenses (000s)

Employee benefits 3,699 30%

Materials and services 5,513 45% Expenses oo T S
Finance costs 49 0% D& o oot
Depreciation 1,746 14% o 1 Finaree xats
Other Expense 1,220 10% e AN
Capital expenses 7 0% “ Ql;rhpme
Total Expenses 12,234 100% L8 “

Other Comprehensive Income (000s)
Increase / (decrease) in asset
revaluation surplus 5,531

Net Result (000s) 6,889 u as




Executive Finance Managers Commentary

Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council made a surplus of $6.890M for the year
ending 30 June 2022. If the revaluing of assets and leases is excluded, the
council made a surplus of $1.359M.

Income

A component of the council's $13.592M revenue were Mapoon Store sales of
$1.014M, this revenue is offset by the costs of running the store which resulted
in it making a loss in the 2021/22 year of $93,724. The Council established the
store, not to make a profit but to provide a service and extra employment to the
residents of Mapoon, giving the residents the opportunity to shop locally rather
than travelling to Weipa to purchase goods. In October 2021 the Council leased
Mapoon Store to a third party except for the Service Station and ATM services.

In the 2021/22 period Council generated (Non grant Income) sales in the
following main areas
= Social Housing Maintenance $ 1,279,358

= | andsea Contract Income $ 341,564

= Store Sales $ 1,013,649

=  Accommodation $ 350,618

=  Administration $ 117,782
Expenses

Depreciation

Depreciation represents 14% of Councils expenses. Depreciation is the
estimated cost of wear and tear on all Councils assets including buildings, water
pipes, motor vehicles, roads etc. Mapoon Council does not receive any grants
to cover the cost of depreciation, this may create future problems when the
Council needs to replace these assets but lacks the funds to do so. Depreciation
is the largest contributing factor to the Council making a loss.

Materials & Services

Materials and services represent the cost of all Councils purchases, including
the purchase of goods to be sold in the store, insurance, consultants,
communication and IT, materials and contractors for repairs and maintenance,
office supplies and power costs, etc.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits represent the councils labour costs, this amount includes
wages, councillor remuneration and superannuation.

Finance Costs

Finance costs are comprised of Bank fees and the write off and provision for
bad and doubtful debts.
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Council expenses by function for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Expenses  Corporate Governance and

Expenses Administration

$'000
Corporate Governance and Administration B 8.478 69%
Major Projects

@ Major Prajects

il Land & Sea
Land & Sea N 14 0%

Community Services - 26 0% @ Community Servioes
Mapoon Store N 942 8%
Fleet Management 58 0%
Works - 2,832 23%

Total Expenses - 12,234 100%

o Mapaon Stare

il Fliseet Ibariage mént

i Works

Executive Finance Manager Commentary

The above expenses relate to the operation of council’s various divisions. These
divisions can be broken into the following grants/projects:

Corporate Governance and - Municipal Services

Administration - Town Planning
- Rental Management
- Short Stay Accommodation
- Environmental Health Worker
- Indigenous Arts
- Community Housing (Rental)
- General Admin (non-grant)

Works/Major Projects - Council Buildings
- Council Infrastructure

Land & Sea Rangers - Working On Country
- Fire Management Operations
- Pest Offensives
- Provision of Ranger Contract
Services

Community Services - Childcare
- Natural Disaster Study
- Aged Care
- Animal Management Programs
- Cultural Heritage Management
- Art Projects
- Mapoon Day

Mapoon Store - Store operations




Elected Members Remuneration

The remuneration of all Councillor's is a fixed amount as set out by the Local
Government Remuneration Tribunal and is reviewed and adopted by the Council
on an annual basis. The total remuneration and superannuation contributions of the
Elected Members in the year ending 2022 are as outlined below:

Remuneration Superannuation Total
Name Position ($) ($) ($)
Aileen Addo| Mayor 109,725 12,986 122,711
Cameron Hudson| Ex Deputy Mayor| 50,590 6,071 56,660
Cameron Hudson Councillor] 10,059 1,207 11,264
Kiri Tabuai Deputy Mayor 12,122 1,455 13,577
Kiri Tabuai Ex Councillor 33,275 3,993 37,268
Margaret Mara Ex Councillor 4,833 580 5,413
Dawn Braun Councillor] 54,387 6,527 60,914
Daphne De Jerseyj Councillor] 52,884 6,346 59,230
Paid expenses/allowances|
Name| Position Amount (S)]
Aileen Addo| Mayor 669
Cameron Hudson Councillor] 928
Cameron Hudson| Ex Deputy Mayor| 3,590
Margaret Mara Councillor] 0
Kiri Tabuai Deputy Mayor] 458
Kiri Tabuai Ex Councillor] 967
Dawn Braun Councillor] 1,945
Daphne De Jersey Councillor] 1,017

Senior Management Remuneration

As per the established organisational structure, Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
currently employs 4 Senior Contract Employees. In accordance with the Local
Government Act 2009 requirements, it is required that the number of senior contract
employees with remuneration packages exceeding $100,000.00 must be recorded
for the period of 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. A senior contract employee refers to
the Chief Executive Officer and all senior executive employees of the Local
Government Council. The table below is a record of the number of senior contract
employees, including terminated senior employees, whose salary exceed
$100,000.00

Package Range Number of senior contract employees within package range
$100,000 - $200,000 3
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Council’s Wealth

Actual Actual

2022 2021
The major items that make up Council's wealth include the
following assets: $'000 $°'000
Cash and cash equivalents 6,472 8,434
Trade and other receivables 578 543
Inventories 170 338
Contract assets 947 1,786
Finance lease assets 9,610 11,085
Fishing License 65 65
Houses 2,929 2,707
Other Buildings 18,122 13,233
Major Plant - 18
Other Plant and Equipment 2,185 1,489
Road, drainage and bridge network 46,197 43,285
Water infrastructure 9,642 5,935
Other Infrastructure assets 6,163 4,987
Work in progress 7,746 10,739
Total Assets 110,827 104,644
Council has funded some of its operations and assets by the
following liabilities:
Creditors- People the council owes money to 3,641 4,348
Net Community Equity (wealth) 107,186 100,296

M Cash and cash equivalents
M Trade and other receivables
M Inventories

m Contract assets

M Finance lease assets

M Fishing License

H Houses

m Other Buildings

 Major Plant

m Other Plant and Equipment
M Road, drainage, and bridge network
m Water infrastructure

1 Other Infrastructure assets

m Work in progress




Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council 5 Year Snapshot as at 30 June 2022

Financial Performance Figures ($'000)

Income

Fees and charges
Rental income
Interest received
Sales revenue
Other income

Grants, subsidies, contributions, and donations

- Operating & Capital

Total Income from Continuing Operations

Income from revaluation of Housing Leases and assets

Total Income
Expenses

Employee benefits
Materials and services
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Other expense

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

Total Capital purchases of PP&E

Operating Surplus,(DefiCit) (excl. Capital Income & Expenses)

Financial Position Figures ($'000)

Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Net Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Borrowings Outstanding (excl. any overdraft)
(Loans, Advances & Finance Leases)

Total Value of PP&E (excl. Land & Improvements)
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Net Value of PP&E

Indicative Remaining Useful Life (as a % of GBV)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
36 35 37 36 34
547 612 593 522 305

16 26 140 64 66
2,346 3,694 3,825 4,613 5,006
195 241 1,250 162 18
5615 6,287 4,629 5178 3,716
4937 6,919 6,645 8,695 4,670
13,692 17,815 17,119 19,270 13,814
- - - 2,153 -
13,592 17,815 17,119 21,422 13,814
3,699 3,752 4,344 4,019 3,595
5613 6,990 6,862 4,233 5,491
49 13 23 28 73
1,746 2,660 2,432 2,104 1,915
1,220 541 - - -
12,227 13,956 13,660 10,328 11,073
7 663 991 127 360
1,359 3,197 2,468 10,967 2,381
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
8,438 11,358 11,842 12,597 9,546
3,605 4,153 4,667 660 1,413
4932 7,206 7,175 11,937 8,133
6,472 8,434 10,104 9,074 7,537
111,011 97,460 88,430 69,313 67,815
18,027 15,067 23,806 15,038 15,223
92,984 82,393 64,624 54,275 52,592
84% 85% 73% 78% 78%

Financial Sustainability Indicators for the year ended 30 June 2022

Long Term Financial Plan Projections
Ideal | Actual | Actual | Yr1 | Yr2 | Yr3 | Yr4 | Yr5 | Yr6 | Yr7 | Yr8 Yr9 Yr10
Ratio % 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032
Operating Surplus Ratio 0-10 -28%  -41%| -35%) 18%) 29%| 24%| 29%| 24%| 29%| 29% 299 249
Asset Sustainability Ratio >90 13%| 67% 26% 103%| 103% 103% 103% 103% 103% 103% 1039 899'
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio |< 60 -64%|  -55%| -60%| -40%| -37% -92%| -87% -86% -88% -774 -83% -639'
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Executive Finance Manager Comments

Operating surplus ratio

Indicates the extent to which money the council received during the year can
pay the expenses Council incurred. The Operating Surplus ratio indicates that
Council is unable to fund its' current operations, this is largely due to the fact
that Council does not receive funding for its depreciation expense.

Asset sustainability ratio

An estimate of the extent to which the infrastructure assets held are being
replaced as these reach the end of their useful life. This ratio indicates that
Council is not adequately replacing its' existing assets. As with the Operating
surplus ratio, this ratio is linked to the depreciation of assets not being
adequately funded. It should be noted however that Council does receive
funding to repair roads and public housing a fact that is not reflected in the asset
sustainability ratio.

Net financial liabilities ratio
Indicates the extent to which Council liabilities can be repaid with Council
revenues. Currently the Council has a healthy Net Financial liabilities ratio.

Council's Financial Management

Council measures revenue and expenditure trends over time as a guide to
future requirements and to make decisions about the efficient allocation of
resources in order to ensure the most effective provision of services. Whilst
Council attempts to ensure that its financial management strategy is prudent,
the Council's long-term financial forecast shows a financial position that falls
short of funding Council infrastructure whilst also being able to meet the
community’s current and future needs. The Council is highly dependent upon
external funding, a situation it is attempting to resolve. These ratios are based
on estimates and assumptions that will be heavily impacted upon by climatic,
social and economic factors.
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Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Fees and charges
Rental income
interest received
Sales revenue
Other income
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Total recurrent revenue
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Other capital income
Total capital revenue

Total Income

Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits
Materials and services
Finance costs
Deprecilation
Other expense

Capltal expenses
Total axpenses
Net result
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassifled to net result
Increase / (Decrease) in asset revaluation surplus

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2022 2021

Note $ $
3(a) 35,976 35,197
3(b) 547,307 611,659
16,378 26,348
3(c) 2,348,001 3,693,975
3(d) 194,555 241,387
4(a) 5,515,351 8,287,195
8,655,568 10,885,760
4(b) 4,933,414 6,913,197
5 3,295 5,859
4,936,709 8,819,056
13,502,277 17,814,818
6 (3,699,278)  (3.752,063)
7 (5,513,372)  (8,990.127)
(48,925) {(12,661)
13 (1,745931)  (2,660,110)
12 (1,219,507) {540,702)
(12,227,013)  {13,955,664)
8 (6,594) (662,624)
(12,233,607)  (14,618,288)
1,358,670 3,196,528
18 5,531,038 12,571,594
5,531,038 12,571,594
6,889,708 15,768,122

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.



Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2022
Restated Restated
2022 2021* 1 July 2020*
Note $ $ $

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 6,471,785 8,433,820 10,103,518
Trade and other receivables 10 577,550 542,953 498,275
Inventories 1 170,260 338,109 271,275
Contract assets 15 947,478 1,786,188 724,170
Other financigl assets 12 270,841 256,448 246,521
Total current assets 8,437,924 11,357,629 11,841,759
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 12 9,339,472 10,828,866 11,630,665
Praperty, plant and equipment 13 92,984,367 82,302,489 65,730,926
Intangible assets - fishing licence 65,000 65,000 65,000
Total non-current assets 102,388,839 93,286,355 77,426,591
Total assets 110,826,763 104,643,884 89,268,350
Current fiabllities
Trade and other payables 18 1,638,766 1,833,874 300,936
Contract liabilities 15 1,578,815 2,120,261 4,077,577
Provisions 17 287,048 198,383 288,264
Total current [labllitles 3,505,429 4,152,518 4,866,777
Non-current liabilitios
Provisions 17 135,357 185,197 73,427
Total non-curvent liablilties 135,357 195,197 73,427
Total liabilities 3.640,768 4,347,715 4,740,203
Net community assets 107,165,977 100,296,269 84,528,147
Communlty equity
Asset revaluation surplus 18 50,897,114 45,366,076 32,794,482
Retalned surplus 56,288,863 54,930,193 51,733,665
Total community equity 107,185,977 100,296,269 84,528,147

The above stalement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates and significant accounting policies.

* Council has made a retrospaclive restatement as a consequence of corraction of error in accordance with AASB 108 and therefore in
accordance with AASB 101 has restated the comperstive figures as set out in Note 24.



Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net result

Other comprehensive income for the year
Increase in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2022

Balance as at 1 July 2020
Adjustment of opening balance on understatement of property, plant and equipment

Restated balance at 1 July 2020

Net result

Other comprehensive income for the year
Increase in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprahensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Asset Retained Total
revaluation  surplus®
surplus
Note
$ $ $

45366,076 54,930,193 100,296,269
- 1,358,670 1,358,670
18 5,531,038 - 5,531,038
5,531,038 1,358,670 6,889,708
50,807,114 56,288,863 107,185,977
32,794,482 50,627,331 83,421,813
- 1,108,334 1,106,334
32,784,482 51,733,665 84,528,147
- 3,196,528 3,196,528
18 12,571,594 - 12,571,594
12,571,594 3,196,528 15,768,122
45,366,076 54,930,193 100,296,269

The above stafement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and significant accounting policies.

* Council has made a refrospective restatement as a& consequence of correction of error in accordance with AASB 108 and therefore in

accordance with AASB 101 has restafed the comparative figures as sel out in Note 24.



Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Councll
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Cash flows from operating actlvities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Rental income

Non capital grants and contributions

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceads from 99 year lease

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Finance lease receipts

Grants, subsidles, contributions and donations

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Investing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) In cash and cash equivatents held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financlal year

Note 2022 2021
$ $

2,075,753 3,859,905
(9,593.437)  (9,300,177)
(6,617,688)  (5.440,272)
16,378 26,348

547,307 611,659
5493418 6,228,438

22 (560,581) 1,426,173
(6,834,820)  (7,396,453)

- 34,182

21,455 70,000

12 255,484 251,174
5156327 _ 3.945330
(1,401,544) _ (3.085,770)
(1,662,125) _ (1,669,597)
8433920 10,403,518

9

6,471,795
[

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and significant accounting policles.

8,433,920



Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1

1A

1.B

1.C

1.0

Information about these financial statements

Basls of praparation

Mapoon Aborigina! Shire Council (the Councll’) is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domicited
in Australia.

These general purpose financial statements are for the periad 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 and have been prepared in compliance
with the requirements of the Locel Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012.

These financial statements comply with Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations issued by the Australlan Accounting
Standards Board (AASB). Council Is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes and these financial statements comply
with Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations as applicable to not-for-profit entities.

These financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain cument and non-current
assets which are measured at fair value and Inventary which is measured at the lower of cost and realisable value.

Mapoon Land Trust

Prior to the 2020-21 financial year, the Mapoon Land Trust has been treated as separats entity with transactions kept in a separate
books and excluded from the Council Financial report. In 2020-21, it was determined that the Trust and Councll are not separate
legal entities and that therefore the transactions and balances of the Trugt should be Incorporatad in Council's financlal statements.
As a result, the assets, liabilities and equity for the Mapoon Land Trust have been recognised in the financlal statements of
Counil. In the 2020-21 financlal statements, a restatement of balances as at 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020 was necessary to
rectify the error in prior years.

New and revised Accounting Standards adopted during the year

Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Councli adopted all standards which became mandatorily effective for annual reporting periods baginning
on 1 July 2021, none of the standards had a material Impact on reported position, performance and cash flows.

Standards issued by the AASB not yat effective

The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2022, These
standards have not been adopted by Council and will be included in the financial statements on their effective date. Councll has
assessed the impact of new or amended standards listed and determined that there is no material impact. Where the standard is
expected to have a significant Impact for Council then further Information has been provided in this note.

The following list Identifies all the new and amended Australian Accounting Standards, and interpretation, that were issued but not
yet effective at the time of preparing these financial statements that could be applicable to Council.

Effactiva for NFP
annual report periods
beginning on of after:

AASB 2020-1 Amendments fo Australlan Accounting Standards - Clessification of 1 January 2023

Liabifities as Current or Non-Cument and associated standards (amended by AASB 2020-

6}

AASE 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements 1 January 2022
2018-2020 and Other Amendmeants

AASB 2021-2 Amendments fo Australian Accounting Stendards - Disclosure of Accounting 1 January 2023

Policles and Definition of Accounting Estimates (amended by AASB 2021 -B)



Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For tha year ended 30 June 2022

1E

1.F

1.6

1H

1l

Estimates and judgements

Councils make a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions In preparing these financlal statements. These are based on
the best information available to Councl at the time, however due to the passage of time, these assumptions may change and
therefore the recorded balances may not reflect the final outcomes. The significant judgements, estimates and assumptions relate
1o the following ltems and specific information is provided in the relevant note:

Valuation and depreclation of property, plant and equipment - Note 13 and Note 14
Impalrment of property, plant and equipment- Note 14

Employee Benefits - Note 8

Valuation of finance leases - Note 12

Contract assats and liabilities - Note 15

Provisions - Note 17

Financial instruments - Note 25

Revenue recognition - Nota 3 and Note 4

Rounding and comparatives
Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency and rounds to the nearest dolfar.

Comparative informatlon is generally restated for reclassifications, emors and changes in accounting pollcies unless permitted
otherwise by transition rules in a new Accounting Standard. Comparative information ig prepared on the same basls as the prior

year.

Financial assets and financlal liabilitles

Councll recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balance date as follows:

B ‘al l
Cash and cash aquivalents - measured at amortised cost (Note 9)
Recelvables - measured at amortised cost (Note 10}

Lease recaivables (finance leases) - measwred at fair value (Note 12)

FEinancial liabilitles
Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 16)
Flnanclal assets and financlal liabliities are presented separately from each ather and offsetting has not been applied.

Taxation

Mapoan Aboriginal Shire Council Is exempt from Income tax, however coundil is subject to Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and
Services Tax (\GST') on certain activities, The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an

asset or llability rezpectively.

The impact of COVID-19 on the financlal statements
Council's oparational activities for the year ended 30 June 2022 have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandamic.

The impact of Covid has been significant at an operational leve! as supply issues have continued ta be challenging in refation to the
completion of certain capital projects. Coungil has also experienced a high level of absenteelsm related to sick leave as a result of
Covid. The financial impact it is not considered to be material.

There have not been any other significant adverse operational or financial impacts as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic to date
and it is confirmed that any known impacts have been reflacted in the financlal statements.

As st the date of signing these financia! statements, given the evolving circumstances of COVID -19, the ongoing impact on
Council cannot be reliably estimated for future financlal periods. This is consldered a non-adjusting event for financial reporting and
disclosure purposes and, as such, has no impact on the amounts reported in these financlal statements.



Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

2. Analysis of results by function

2(a} Components of Councll functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows :

Corporate governance and administration

The objective of corporate govemance is for the Council to be apen, accountable, fransparent and deliver value for money
community outcomes. This function includes strategic and operational planning, risk management, legal and administrative
support. The Mayor, Councillors and Chief Executive Officer are included in corporale governance.

Major Projects
Magjor infrastructure development funding which has various funding bodies contributing to & single project, e.g. Construction of

the Mapoon Rural Transaction CentrefLand and Sea Building.

Land and Sea
lssues relating to the surrounding land and sea are of major importance to the Mapoon community and the Council has

acknowledged this by applying for significant grant funding in this area.

Community Services
Community services and facilities including cuitural, health, welfare, environmental and recreational services. This function

includes a range of services benefitting the members of the community.

Mapoon Store
Until October 2021, the local Mapoon Store was a Council enterprise. After this date, the store has been operated by a third

party under a lease agreement with Councit. All stock In hand (for stores) was transferred to the third party at that date, Sales
revenue ceased and leasa revenue has subsequently been recognised since the date of the lease agreement.

Fleet Management
The Council garage is used to maintain cars and machinery. It is run as an enterprise with very few external contractors.

Works
This includes all housing construction and maintenance in addition to any road works contracts.
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Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Councll
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

3 Revenue
(a) Fees and charges

Revenue arising from fees and charges are recognised at the point in time when the parformanca obligation is completed and the
customer recsives the benefit of the goods/ services being provided.

The performance cbligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment terms are
within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases, the customer is required to pay on amival, for example on amival at
camp grounds. There is no material obligation for Coungil in relation to refunds or retums.

2022 2021
$ $
Agericy commissions 35,976 35,308
Other fees and charges - (111)
35,976 35,197

(b) Rental income
Rent from community housing s recognised as income on a periodic straight line basis over the lease term.

Rental income on community housing 547,307 611,659

547,307 611,659

(c) Sales revenue
Sale of goods revenue Is recognised at the point in tme that the customer obtalns contral of the goods, generally at delivery.
Revenue from services Is recognised whan the service Is rendered.

Council generates revenue from contracts for repairs and maintenance of community housing and from contracts for road and
earthworks. Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an
hourly charge for use of equipment and employses. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completian of the contract activity based on costs incurred at the reporting date. Where consideration is received for the servics in
advance, it Is included In other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed. The contract work

caried out is not subject to retentions.

2022 2021
Note $ $
Rendering of services
Contract and recoverable works 1,237,838 1,239,748
Sala of sarvices - Motor 4,018 21,752
Sale of services - Other 28,952 11,730
1,271,808 1,273,231
Sale of goods
Sale of goods - Store” 544,007 2,011,110
Sale of goods - Other 18,978 21,085
Sale of goods - Service Station 511,208 388,549
1,074,193 2,420,744
Total sales revenue 2,346,001 3,693,975
2022 2021
{d) Other income $ ]
Backpay on lease receivables - 15,174
Relmbursements 180,467 133.861
Miscellaneous 14,088 92,352
194,555 241,387

* In October 2021 the operation of the stora was leased outto a third party with sales revenue ceasing at that date.
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Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

4 Grants, subsldies, contributions and donations

Grant income under AASB 15
Where grant income arises from an agreement which (s enforceable and contains sufficiendy specific parformance obligations then

the revenue is recognised when controt of each performance obligations is satisfied.

The performance obligations vary in each agreement but include events, disability support services, etc. Payment terms vary
depending on the terms of the grant, cash is received upfront for some grants and on the achisvement of certaln payment milestones
for others.

Each performance obligation Is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within grant
agresments there may be some performance obligations where control transfers ata point in time and others which hava continuous
transfer of control over the life of the contract. Where contral Is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs
or time Incurred are deemed to be the most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit

Where control s transferred over time, revenue is recognised using either costs or time incurred.

Grant income under AASB 1058
Where Council receives an asset for significantly below fair value, the asset Is recognised at fair value, related liability {or equity
items) are recorded and income then I3 recognisad for any remaining asset value at the time that the asget Is received.

Capital grants

Where Council receive funding under an enforceable contract to acquire or construct a specified item of property, plant and
equipment which will be under Councifs contral on complefion, revenue Is recognised as and when the obligation to construct or
purchase Is completed. For construction projects, thisis generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs Incurrad.

Donations and Contributions
Where assets are donated or purchased for significantly below fair value, the revenue is recognisad when the asset Is acquired and
controlled by the Council.

Donations and contributions are generally recognised on recelpt of the asset since thera are no enforceable performance obligations.

Physical assets contributed to council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater, water and wastewater infrastructure and
park equipment are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control of the asset and there Is sufficient data in the form of
drawings and plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of such assets. Non-cash contributions with a value in
excess of the recognition thrasholds are recognised as non-curent assets. Those below the thresholds are recorded as expenses.

2022 2021
$ $
(a) Operating
State government subsldies and grants 3,700,002 4,156,707
Commonwealth govemment subsidies and grants 1,566,297 1,807,066
Other subsidies and grants 229,063 323,422
5,515,351 6,287,195
(b) Capital
State government subsidies and grants 3,856,510 2,971,088
Commonwealth govemment subsidias and grants 229,243 -
Other subsidies and grants 847,661 3,042,109
4,933,414 6,913,197

Capital revenue Includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects for the replacement or upgrade of existing
non-current assets andfor investmant in new assets. It also includes non-cash contributions which are usually infrastructure assets

recaived from developers.
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Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations (continued)

(c) Timing of revenue recognition for grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

2022 2021
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
recognised at  racognised over recognised ata  recognised over
a point In time time point In time time
$ $ $ $
Grants and subsidies 4,819,174 5,509,556 4,093,623 8,905,663
Donations 28,864 91,171 201,108 -

4,848,038 5,600,727 2204729 8,905,663

2022 2021
Note $ $
5 Other caplial income
Gain on revaluation
Decrease in landfill provision 3,205 -
Gain on disposal of non-current assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 34,182
Less: Carrying value of disposed property, plant and equipment - (28,323)
- 5,859
3,295 5,859

6 Employee benofits expense
Employes benefit expenses are recorded when the sorvice has been provided by the employes. Counclllor remuneration represents

salary, and cther allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties.

Staff wages and salafies 2,668,060 2,757,850
Councillors' remuneration 327,875 335,132
Annual, sick and fong service leave entilements 437,056 308,564
Supsrannuation 21 377,431 407,613
3,810,422 3,809,159
Other smployee related expenses 252,855 358,401
4,063,277 4,167,580
Less: Capitalised employee expenses (363,999) (415,497)
3.699_&7; 3,752,063
2022 2021
Total Council employees at the reporting date: Number MNumber
Elected members 5 5
Administration staff 18 18
Depot and outdoors staff 38 40
61 B3

Total employees
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Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

7 Materials and services

Expenses are racorded on an accruals basis as Councll recelves the goods or services.

Administration supplies and consumables
Advertising and marketing and promotion
Audit of annual financial statements by Auditor-General of Queensland *
Communications and IT

Construction materials and axpenses
Consultants

Contractors

Donations paid

Fue!

Insurance

Office supplies

Other materials and supplies

Power

Repairs and maintenance

Service foes

Service station

Store cost of sales

Grants refunded

Subscriptions and registrations

Tools and minor equipment

Travel

2022 2021
$ $

52,816 48,029
0,621 13,151
71,700 150,220
204,824 268,497
321,029 267,946
920,127 482,840
1,171,078 2,278.919
1,400 16,796
174,477 123,228
298,262 244,951
12,802 14,867
349,062 450,520
78,054 106,661
248,065 180,429
129,234 154,055
437,847 243,469
528,868 1,611,857

127,405 -
92,108 45342
33,840 39,999
164,363 238,542
5,513,372 6,890,127

* Total audit faes quoted by the Quesnsland Audit Office refating to the 2021-22 financial statements are $71,700 (2021 $72,000).
Included In the prior year expense is an accrual for the 2020-21 audit fee in addition to the fees for the 2019-20 financial year. An

accrual had not been recognised in previous years.

8 Capital expenses

Provision for landfill restoration
Initial recognition of provision for landfill restoration

Loss on disposal of non-current assets
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Less: Camying value of disposed property, plant and equipment

Loss on transfer of asset 1o 89-year lease

Bock value of housing asset transferred to 99 year lease
Less: Setlement price received

Total capital expenses

- 167,244

- 167,244
(21,455) -
28,049 -
6,504 -

- 565,380

- (70,000)

- 495,380

6,594 662,624




Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

10

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques recelpted but not banked at
the year end, deposits held at call and bank overdrafts with financial institutions.

2022 2021
Note $ $
Cash at bank and on hand 2,851,103 3,906,174
Deposits at cail 3,620,692 4,527,746
Balance per Statement of Financial Position / Cash Flows 6,471,795 8,433,920

Bank accounts are held with financial institutions, which are rated AA- based on rating agency Fitch Ratings, and whilst not capital
guaranteed, the likelihood of a credit failure is assessed as remote. All investments are required to have a minimum credit reting of
*A-*, therefore the likslihood of the counterparty having capacity to meet Its financial commitments is strong.

Cash and cash equivalents 6,471,795 8,433,920
Less: Extemnally imposed restrictions on cash () (2,869,213) (3,662,702)
Unrestricted cash §|Q2I§82 4177! ,g;lg

The Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and extemal restrictions that limit amounts available for
discretionary or future use. These include:

(1) Extarnally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date relate to the following cash assets:

Unspent government grants and subsidies 2,869,213 3,662,702
Total externally imposed restrictions on cash assels 2,869,213 3,662,702
Trade and other receivables
2022 2021

$ $
Current
Trade debtors 475,472 478,548
Housing rental 52,007 61,595
GST recoverable 172,047 -
Prepayments 18,741 132,094

718,267 672,237
Less: Loss Allowance (140,717) (128,284)

577,550 542,953

Reoceivables are measured at amortised cost which approximates fair value at reporting date. Trade debtors are recognised at the
amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase/contract price. Settiement of these amounts is required

within 30 days from invoice date.

All known bad debts are written-off at 30 June each year. Council reviews recelvable balances on an Individual basis to assess the
axpected credit losses of trads receivables from Individual customers. If an amourt is recovered in a subsequent pericd It is

recognised as revenue.

No Interest is charged on Trade and Other Receivables. There is no concentration of credit risk for housing rental and trade debtors
recelvable.

By the nature of the Council's operations, there is a geographical concentration of risk In the Council's area.

The loss on impairment is recognised in finance costs. The amount of the impairment Is the difference between the asset's camying

amount and the prasent value of the estimated cash flows discounted st the effective interest rate. Movement in accumulated
impairment fosses (housing rental and trade debtors) is as follows:

Opening balance at 1 July 129,284 124,863
Additional impairments recognised 11,433 4,422
140,717 129,284

Closing Balance at 30 June
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Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

10 Trade and other recelvables (continued)

Expected credit loss assessment

The Councll uses an sllawance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of rade recelvables from individual customers.

Loss rates are assessad on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stagas of delinquency to writs-off. Councll
does not write off the delinquent debts relating to Mapoon residents unless the chance of debt recovery is Impossible. Council will,

however, Impair the debt 100%.

Write offs throughout the year and End of Period Expected Credit Logses for Receivables

Ail amounts that were written off during the reporting periog and are no longer subject to enforcement activity.

2022 Aging
Other debtors
Other debtors Current
1-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
90+ days
2021 Aging
Other debtors
Other debtors Current
1-30 days
31-80 days
61-90 days
90+ days

Closing
Balance 2022

$
327,885
8,213
1,620
720
181,175

520,313

Closing
Balance 2021

$
160,606
6,813
13,118
6,586
333,318

620,441

Historical
probability of
default

%

0%
0%
0%
78%

Historical

probability of
default

%
0%
0%
0%
0%
39%

Loss given
default

%

100%
100%
100%
100%

Loss glven
default

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Lifetime
Expected Credit

140,717
140,717

Lifetime
Expected Credit

Loss
$

6.00

129,276

T 129216

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past ten years. These rates are multiplied by scalar factors to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has bean collected, cument conditions and
the Council's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the recelvables.

11 inventories

Stores, raw materials and supermarket stock held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable valua and include,
where applicable, direct material, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variabte and fixed overheads.

Inventories held for sale
Miscellaneous saleable items
Store stock *

Fue! stock

Inventories held for distribution
Plant and equipment stores

Total Inventorias

2022 2021

$ $
8,689 1,092
- 213,215
89,672 33,080
98,361 247,387
71,899 90,722
71,899 90,722
170,260 338,109

* In October 2021 the operation of the store was laased out to a third party with Inventary transferred at that date.
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Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

12 Leases

Council as a lessee
Council has no a cument lease in place over the operation of the Mapoon store. Council has applied the exception to lease

accounting for leases of low-value assets and short-temn leases.

Exceptions to lease accounting
Council has applied the exceptions {0 lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal to 12
months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments assaciated with these leases as an expense on a straight-

line basls over the lease term.

Leases st significantly below market value - Concessionary | peppercorn leases

Coungil is tha lassee of a number of Deed of Grant In Trust leases, for which no or little lease payments are made. These have been
identified as peppercom leases which are currently not recognised in Council's financial statements. Council has elected not to apply
the fair value messurement requirements to these leases untll such time as this requirement is mandated. Council doss not belleve
that any of the these leases in place are individually material.

Council as a lessor

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have bsen transferred to the lessee. If the risks and
rewards have been transferred then the leasa is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it i3 an operating lease.

If the leasa contatns lease and non-lease components then the non-lease components are accountsd for In accordance with AASB
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The lease income Is recognised an a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Until October 2021, the local Mapoon Store was a Council enterprise. After this date, the store has been operated by a third party
under a lease agreement with Council. Lease revenue has been recognised since the date of the lease agreement.

Finance leases

The Coungil has leased 83 dwellings as lessor to the Queensland Government for 40 years. The total average lease payment per
dwelling in the cument year was $3,078 (2021: $3,026). These lease payments are required to be adjusted each year by the change
in the Consumer Price Index (All Groups) for Brisbane. As the gross lease payments are insufficient to cover the fair value
(depreclated replacement cost) of the leased properties, there is no interest rate implicit in the leases and therafore no finance
income will arise from the leases. Consequently, the leases ar recognised at the present value of the expected future lease
payments receivable {falr value). Gains on revaluation of finance lease assets are recognised as recurrent revenue or expenses,

2022 2021
$ $
Current other financial assets
Finance lgases receivable 270,841 256,448
270,841 256,448
Non-current other financial assets
Finance leases receivable 9,339,472 10,828,866

9,339,472 10,828,866




Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

12 Leases (continued)
A reconciliation betwesn the gross Investment In the leases and the fair valus of lease payments is as follows:

Gross minimum lease payments receivable:

Not later than one year 270,841 256,448
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,083,364 1,025,792
Later than five years 7,642,536 7,492,661
8,996,741 8,774,901
Add: estimated contingent rent 7,714,991 4,888,000
Less: prasent value adjustment (7,101,419) (2,577,677)
Fair value of lease payments 9,610,313 11,085,314
The fair value of lease payments are recelvable as follows:
Not {ater than one year 270,841 256,448
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,084,372 1,061,007
Later than five years 8,245,100 9,767,859
9,610,313 11,085,314

Movements in lease recelvables were as follows:

Opening balance 11,085,314 11,877,187
Less: lease receipts (255,494} (251,171)
Gain/(loss) on revaluation (1.219,507) (540,702)
Closing balance 9,610,313 11,085,314

The calculation of fair value has Included an estimate of average annual CPI increases of 3.55% (2021:2.6%) and a discount rate of
3.13% (2021: 1.13%).

Finance leases are to the State of Queensland, reprasanted by the Department of Communities, Housing and Digital Economy. The
likelihood of this counterparty not having capacity to meet its financial commitments is considered low.

Over recent years, Council has entered into a number of Home Ownership lease agreements with Community residents. These lease
agreements relate to Counci! houses and are for a term of 99 years with an initlal one off settlement payment, a rent component of $1
and a rates component of between $2,000 - $3,000. It is considered that the rates component does not form part of the lease
agresment for accounting purposes and the lsases therefore have been treated as peppercom leases with the rates element to be
recognizsed as revenus in the year received. it Is noted that prior to the 2020-21 financtal year, the houses included in the leases were
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position &s either housing assets in property, plant and equipment or lease asssts under 40
year housing leasss. The impact of the houses transferred into 89 year lease assets consaquently resulted in a loss in the previous
year on transfar of assats in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for Council.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Recognition

Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recognised as assets unless they are below the assst recognition threshold or
maintenance expendlture.

Individual assets valued below the asset recognition threshold are recognised as an asset if connected to a larger network.

Land under roads and reserve land under the Land Act 1994 or Land Title Act 1894 is controlled by Queensiand State Government and
not recognised in the Councll financlal statements.

Deed of Grant in Trugt Land
The Councll is located on land comprising an area of approximately 53,000 hactares, assigned to two separete trusts under a Deed of
Grant in Trust (DOGIT) under Section 341 of the Land Act 1994. One trust, for which the Councll Is the sole trustee relates to the town

area, The other trust covers tha surrounding areas.

The land is administered by the Department of the Environment and Resource Managemant and the Councll has restrictad use of this land
for the benefit of shire inhabitants. The DOGIT land has not been taken up in the Council's assets as it cannot be reliably measured.

Measurement
Property, plant and equipment assets are Initially recorded at cost. Subsequently, each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at
cost or fair value less, whers applicable, any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Cost Is determined as the fair value of consideration plus costs Incidental to the acquisition. Direct labour, materials and an appropriate
portion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are also included as capital costs.

Capital work In progregs
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Gouncll includes the cost of purchased services, materials, direct

labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads.

Depreciation
Assets aro depreciated from the date of acquisition or when an asset is ready for use.
Work In progress and certain road farmations are not depreciated as these asssts have uniimited useful lives.

Dapraciation, where applicable, is calculated on a straight-ling basis such that the cost of the asset less its residual value is recognised
progressively over its estimated useful life to Council. Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflacts the pattern of

consumption of all Councll assets.

The useful life of leasehold improvemants is the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the remalning life of the lease.

Where assets have separstely identifiable componants that are subject to regular replacemant, these components are assigned useful
lives distinct from the asset to which they relate.

Depreciation methods, estimatad useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting perlod and adjusted where

necessary to reflect any changes in the pattem of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or
management intentions. Detsils of tha range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are shown in the table in this note.

Key Judgements and estimates:
Straight line depreciation is used as that is consistent with the even consumption of service potential of these assets over their useful life

to the Cauncil.

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reparting date, based on the expected utility of the
assats. Uncertalnties in these estimatss relate to technical obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and IT equipment.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment held at cost is assessad for Indicators of impaimment annually. If an indicator of possible Impairment exists,
the Council determines the assel's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the assef’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

An impalrment {oss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is camied at a revalued
amount. When the asset Is measured at a revalued amount, the Impaimment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the

relevant class to the extent avallable.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is Increased fo the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but $o that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
Impairment loss been recognised for the assat in prior years. A raversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income unless the assstis
carried at a ravalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation surplus increase.

Valuation

Key judgments and astimates:
Somse of the Council's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purpasses.

in estimating tha fair value of an asset or a liability, the Council uses market-observable data to the extent it ia available and other Inputs
as necessary.

Nan-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the camrying amount of each class of asset does
not materially differ from its fair velue at the reporting date. This Is achieved by comprehensively revaluing these assets at least ance
every five years, with interim valuations using a suitable Index being otherwise performed on an annual basis where there has bsen a
material variation in the index.

In the Intervening years, management engage independent, professionally qualified valuers to perform & “deskiop® valuation, A desktop
valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes In assumptions
such as useful life, residusl value and condition rating. The valuer then detenmines suitable indices which are applied to each of these
Bssat classes.

Revaluation increases are recognised In the asset revatuation surplug unless they are reversing a previous decrease which was taken
through the income statement, in that case the incraase is taken to the Income statement to the extent of the previous decreass.

Revaluation decreases are recognised In the asset revaluation surplus, where there is sufficient amount avallable in tha asset revaluation
surplus relating to that asset class. Where thers isn't sufficient amount available in the surplus, the decrease is recognised in the
statemant of comprehansive incoma.

Whare the class of asset has previously decreased in value and this reduction was recognised as an expense, an increase in the value of
the class Is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation Is restated propartionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any change
in the estimate of remaining useful life,

Detalls of valuars and methods of valuations are disclosed in Note 14.
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14 Fair Value Measurements
Koy judgemants and estimates:

Some of the Councll's assets and liabllities are messured at falr value for financlal reporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Council uses market-observable data to the extent it is avallable and other inpuis as necassary.

{i) Recognised falr value measurements

Fair values are classified Inlo ihree levels as follows:
. Leve! 1 - fair value based on quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities
. Level 2 - Fair value based on inpuls that are direclly or indirectly observable, such es prices for similar assets, for the asset or liability
- Level 3 - Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability

There were no transfers between levels of the hierarchy during the year.

The Council's policy is to recognise transfers In and out of the fair value hlerarchy levels as at the end of the reporting pericd.

(i1} Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 3 valuations
Specific valuation techniques used 1o value Council assets comprise:

Consumption score {based on physical
characleristics as well as potential Impact
of changes in functionality, capacity,
cbsolescence and legal and other limits.

A“::;m' and luation — " Key assumptions and estimates Index applied (change In Index
value approach il Vaiuer angaged (related data sources) recopnised this )
hierarchy valuation date yoar
Replacemert Cost {based on actual An increase of 13.4% - 15.3% for the
dimensions and unit rates derived from  |Houses asset class and an increase of
market evidence) 4.1% - 15.3% for the Other Building hes
baen adopted.
Residual Value {based on estimated
proceeds from disposal at the end of the |This is based on composite price
useful life — typically d as nil} w nts in labour, ials and
overhesads relevant to typical Council
Split beiween short4Ife and longHife part |buildings over the period. Reference
(based on consldsration of likely future  |has besn made to published indices
asset management treatments) including Rawlinson’s Bullding Cost
Index Brisbane, house construction PPl
valuation Profile (based on how market  |(Queensiand), bullding construction PPI
parficipants perceive the relationship (Queensiand), other residential buitding
Current between asset congition, cost to renew  |construction PPI (Queensland) and non-
Houses and Other |2 ) oment apJun2q  |APY Assel the asset and the associated value). I building coi PPI
Buildings (leve! 3) Cost |Valuers (Queensland).

Council considered the indlces

I{ ded by the | valuer
and incorporated the most up to date
available information at the time of

|preparing tha financial statements. The

signtficant increases in material and
labour costs for the final haif of the 2021
22 financial year have baen reflected in
the indexation psrcentages applied.
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14 Falr Value Moasurements (continued)

A“f:‘l:"':::"d Valua‘lio: o L.: nsive |Vahser engaged Key aulumptlons and estimates Indax applied (ct:l:e in Index
hlerarchy approac valuation date (ralated data sources) recognisat ysar)
Replacement Cost {based on actual An increase of 3.0% - 13.9% has been
dimengions and unit rates derived from  |adopted for roads and other
market evidence) infrastructure. These movements reflect
the movements In unit rate/tender
| Residual Value (based on estimated pricing for materials, labour and
proceeds from disposel at the end of the |overhaads and general consensus of
usefud life — typically assessed as nil) price movements for projects within
Cape York. Also, reference hes been
Split between short-ife and long-ife part |made to the published index of other
|(based on consideration of likely future  |heavy and civil construstion PPI
Curmerit asset management freatments) (Queensland).
Ifiggistruchire Replacement |  30-hn21 [N v Asset
assets (Level 3) Cost Valuers Valuatlon Profile (based on how market  |Council considered the indices
participants perceive the relationship recommended by the external valuer
|batween asset conditian, cost to renew  |and incorporated the most up to date
the asset and the associated value). |available information at the time of
preparing the financial statements. The
Consumption score {based on physical  |significant increases in material and
characteristics as well as potentia) Impact|iabour costs for the final half of the 2021
of changes in functionality, capacity, 22 financial year have been reflected in
obaolescence and legal and other limils. |the indexation percentages applied.
Used actual construction or purchase An increase of 8.0% has besn adopted
prices for recent projects. This may for roads and other Infrastructure. These
include further enquires with the supplier nts reflect the me In
to ensuns we have adjusted for any unit rateftender pricing for materials,
recent price movementa. Depanding on  |labour and overheads and ganeral
the complexily of the project it may afso of price movements for
invoive disaggregating the overall cost  |projects within Cape York. Also,
into greater detail. Appticabls date from  |reference has been made to the
valuers database of actunl projects cost | published index of road and bridge
were used and other cost guides such as |construction PP (Queensiand).
Rawlinson's Construction Gulde and
Current Cordell’s. Council considered the indices
Er?:d b:l'd:l:i::::rk Replacement | 30-hun-21 c;x:w recommendad by the extemal valuer
Cost Some assets (such as underground plipes |and incorporated the most up to date
and structures) were not inspected due to |available information st the time of
the nature end the cost involved In preparing the financial etatements. The
undertaking extensive engineering significant increases in material and
assessmants. Where available, rellance |labour costs for the final half of the 2021
was placed on condition assessment and |22 financial year have been reflected in
altribute data maintained within the the indexation percentages applied.
Councif's assst management and GIS
|systems.
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14 Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Asset class and Last
. Valuation . Key assumptions and estimates Index applied (change in index
::l:’::::; approach T:::i::::t? Valuer engaged {relatod data sources) recognised this year)

Used actual cor orp Ani of 8.2% - 8.8% has been
prices for recent projects. This may lopted for water, ge and other
Include further enquires with the supplier |infr cture. These ta refiect
to ensure we have adjusted for any the movements in unit rateftender
recent price movements. Depending on | pricing for materiis, Iabour and
the camplexlty of the project it may also  |overheads and general consensus of
Involve disaggregating the overall cost  |price movements for projects within
irlo greater detail. Applicable date from Cape York. Also, reference has been
valuers database of actual projects cost |made to the published index of other
were used and other cost guides such as |heavy and civil eonstruction PP
Rawlinson’s Construction Guide and (Queenstand).

Water, sewarage  |Cument APV Asset Cordell's.

and other Replacement 30-Jun-21 Valuers Council conslderad the indices

infrastructure Cost Some assets (such as underground pipes ded by the extemal valuer
and structures) were nat inspected due to [and incorporeted the most up to date
the nature and the cost involved in available information at the time of
underiaking extensive engineering preparing the financial statements. The

rms. Where available, reliance |significant increases in material and

was placed on condition assessment end |labour costs for the final half of the 2021
attribute data malntained within the 22 financial year have been reflected in
Council's asset management and GIS the indexation percentages applied.
systems.

Finance lease assets (Level 3)

Finance leases are recognised at the present value of the expected future lease payments recelvable {fair value). Council's cument poficy for the valuation of

finance leases is set outin Note 12,

(i1}) Changes in Fair Value Measurements using significant unobservable Inputs (lsvel 3)
There have been no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 measurements during the year.

{iv) Valuation processes

Coundr's valuation policies and procedures are set by the Executiva Management team. They are reviewed annually taking Into consideration an analysia of

movements in fair value and other relevant information. Gouncil's current

pallcy for the valuation of property, plant and equipment (recurring falr value

measurements) is sef out in Note 13. Non-recurring fair value measurements are mada at the point of reciassification by a registered valuer.
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Contract balances

Contract assets represents the excess of costs incumed in relation to a contract with the customer or construction of an asset over the
amounts that councll has involced the customer or the grantor. Where Council has invoiced the customer or the grantor amounts in
excess of what it has incurred in relation to a contract or in constructing an asset, this gives rise o a contract liability.

2022 2021

$ $
Contract assets
Operating 7311 246,875
Capital 840,167 1,539,323

947,478 1,786,199
Contract liabilities
Funds received upfront to construct Council controlled assets 1,503,508 1,879,749
Non-capital performance obligations not yat satisfied 75,107 240,512

1,578,615 2,120,261

Significant changes in contract balances

Significant movements in contract assats and contract flabilities that have occurred during the year were due to the completion of
varlous capital works as refiected in the transfer of work in progress to relevant asset categorles.

Trade and other payables 2022 2021
$ $
Current
Craditors 1,241,619 1,048,091
Accruals 205,870 754,036
QOther payables 102,277 33,747
1,639,768 1,833,874

Creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordared and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract price net of
applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms.
Salaries and wages

A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at curment pay rates in respect
of employees’ services up to that date. This liabllity represents an accrued expense and is reported as a payable.
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Provisions
2022 2021
$ $
Current
Landflll restoration 67,600 -
Annual leave 158,549 144,311
Long service leave 60,809 54,072
280,048 103383,

Non-current
Landfill restoration 96,260 167,244

39,097 27,853

Long service leave

—35.30], e 185097

Details of movements of landfill restoration:
Landfill restoration provision

Batance at beginning of financial year 167,244 -

Movement as 8 result of change in discount rate {3,294)

Initial recognition - 167,244
163,950 167,244

Balance at end of financial year
Liabilitles are recognised for employee benefits such as annual and long service leave in respect of services provided by the employeas
up to the reporting date. Short-term benefits which are axpacted to be wholly settled within 12 months are calculated on wage and
salary levels which are expected to be paid and includes related employae on-costs. Amounts not expected to be wholly settled within
12 months are calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs, and are discounted to present
values.

Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, sick, annual and long service leave in respect of services
provided by the employees up to the reporting date. The liability is calculated using the present value of remuneration rates that will be
paid when the fiability is expected to be settied and includes related on-costs.

As Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the annual leave beyond twelve months after the reporting date,
annual feave is classified as a current liability.

| ice |
The provision for long service leave represents the present value of the astimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The liability is calculated using cument pay rates and projected future
increases In those rates and Includes refated employes on-costs. The estmates are adjusted for the probabiiity of the employee
remaining in the Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being required to mest the
liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit eamed fo date, and the result Is discounted to present
value. The provision is discounted using the Cammonwealth Bond yield rates published on the Department of State Development,
Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning website.

Where employees have met the prerequisite ength of service and council doss not have an unconditionsl right to defer this liability
beyond 12 months, long service leave Is classified as a current liability, Otherwise it Is classified as non-current.

ngfill ratlon
A provision Is made for the cost of restoring refuse dumps where it is probable the council will have an obligation to rehabilitate the site
when the use of the facilities is complete.

The calculation of the provisions use assumptions including application of environmental legislation, site closure dates, available
technologies and engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from amounts
curently provided. The provisions are reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the

time.

Landfill restoration provision represents the present value of anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the dump sites,
decontamination and monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites.
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Asset revaluation surplus

The asset revaluation surplus comprises revaluation movements on property, plant and equipment. InC

revaluation are offset within a class of assets,

Movemaents in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Met adjustment to non-current assets at end of period to refiect a changs in current fair value:

Houses

Other buildings

Road, drainage and bridge netwark
Water

Cther Infrastructure assets

Balance at the end of the year

Asset revaluation surplus analysis

The closing balance of the assst revaluation surplus comprises the following asset categories:

Houses

Other bulldings

Major plant

Other plant and equipment

Road, drainage and bridge network
Water

Other infrastructure assets

Work In progress

Commitments for expenditure

Contractual commitments

Contractual commitments at the end of the financial year but not recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Within one year

Contingent liabllities
Details and astimates of maximum armounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

Local Government Mutual

and dec on
2022 2021
$ $

45,366,076 32,794,482
386,620 907,474
1,342,084 1,690,455
3,422,003 8,519,487
479,781 1,364,728
(99,450) 998,450
5,531,038 12,571,584
50,897,114 45,366,076
2,497,015 2,110,395
16,710,072 15,367,988
410,005 410,005
149,632 149,632
27,037,060 23,615,057
4,088,904 3,609,123
- 99,450
4,426 4,426
50,897,114 45,366,076

166,695

166,695

The Council is 2 member of the local government mutual ligbility self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the poo! being
wound up or it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be met by
the individual pool members In the same proportion as their contribution is 1o the total pooi confributions in respect to any year that a

deficit arises.

As 8t 30 June 2021 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus and it is not anticipated any fiability will arise.
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Superannuation

Council contributes to the Brighter Super (previously know as LGlAsuper). Brighter Super Is a Multiemployar Plan as defined in
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 119 Employee Benefits. The scheme has a number of elements including defined benefits funds
and an accumulated benefits fund. Courcil does not have any employess who are members of the defingd benefits funds and so is not
exposed to the obligations, assets or costs associated with these funds. Council has employees who are members of the accumulatad
benefits fund.

2022 2021
Note $ $
Superannuation contributions to LGIA Accumulated Benefits Funds 256,756 292,183
Other superannuation contributions to Accumulated Benefits Funds 120,675 115,430
6 377,431 407,613
Reconcillation of net resutt for the year to net cash inflow/ (outRlow) from operating activities
Net operating result 1,358,670 3,196,528
Non-cash operating ems:
Depreciation and amortisation 13 1,745,831 2,660,110
Revaluation adjustments on leases 12 1,219,507 540,702
2,965,438 3,200,812
Investing and davelopment activities (non-cash):
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets 6,584 542,191
Capital grants (4,933,414) (6,913,197)
(4,926,820} (6,371,006)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (34,507) (46,678)
(Increase)decrease in inventory 167,849 (66,834)
Increase/(decrease) in payables (194,108) 1,632,938
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets 239,564 (33,356)
Increase/(decreass) in contract liabilities (165.,405) (18,121)
Increass/(decrease) in provisions 28,825 31,889
42,130 1,399,838
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (560,581) 1,426,173

Events after the reporting period
Ta the best of Council's knowledge at the date of this financiat report, there are no post balance date events that are likaly to have a

material impact on the financlal statements.
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Correction of errors
Understatament of property plant and equipment and overstatement of expenditurefretained saamings

During the 202122 financlal year, the construction of various capital projects such as the Aged Day Care Centre, Mapoon Community
Church and tha new concrete reservoir have been completed. The projects commenced in previous financial years with expenditure
being Incurred in the 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 financial years.

During a detailed review of the costs included in work In progress and a comparison with the total expenditure captured In the various
job codes, it was noted that the total expenditure included in work in progress was significantly lower than the amount reported in the
job codes. Analysls of prior year work in progress movements revealed that in both the 2016-19 and 2018-20 financial years capital

expenditure had not been transferved from recumrent expenditure to the balance of work in progress.

The impact of this arror resulis In an understatement of work in progress included In the balance of proparty, plant and equipment and
an overstatement of axpenditure in the 2018-19 and 2019-20 financials years, with an understatement of opening retained eamings as

at 1 July 2020. The adjustments are as follows:

Statement of financial position at 1 July 2020

Original balance

aspresented 2130  Adjustment R““‘;:;; 1.July
June 2020
$ $ $
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 64,624,592 1,108,334 65,730,926
Total non-current assets 76,320,257 1,106,334 77,426,591
Total assets 88,162,016 1,106,334 89,268,350
Net community assets 83421813 1,106.334 84,528,147
— ———3 —
Community equity
Retained surplus 50,627,331 1,106,334 51,733,665
Total community equity 83421813 1,108,334 84,528,147
Statement of financlal position at 30 June 2021
Original balance
as presented at 30  Adjustment = June 2:21130
June 2021
$ $ $

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 81,286,155 1,106,334 82,392,489
Total non-current assets 92,180,021 1,106,334 93,286,355
Total assets 103,537,649 1,106,334 104,643,983
Net community assets 99,189.935 1,106,334 100&_&
Community equity
Retained surplus 53,823,859 1,106,334 54,930,193
Total community equity 99,189.935 1.106,334 100,296,269
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Flnancial instruments and financial risk management

Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Coungll has exposure to the following rigks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk

- liquidity risk

- market risk

Risk management framework

Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework, together
with develaping and menitoring risk management policies.

Council's risk committee / management (as appropriate) approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for
managing credit, liquidity and markat risk.

The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate limits and
controls and to monttor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility to minimlse potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council does not enter into derivatives.

Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss If a counterparty to a financlal instrument fails to mest its contractua! abligations. These
obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers.

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or similar state/
commonwealth bodies or financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of the Statutory Bodles Financial

Arrangemants Act 1982.
No collateral is held as security relating to the financlal assats held by Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of the reporting period represent the maximum exposure to credit risk for the
Coungil.

Cash and cash equivalenis
See Note 9.

Trade and other receivables
A summary of Counclt's exposure to credIt risk is detailed in Note 10.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabllities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Exposure to liquidity risk
Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Councll Is exposed to liquidity risk through Its normal course of business.

The Council manages s exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits, both short and long term, to cater for
unexpecied volatility In cash fiows. These facilities are disclosed In Note 9.
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25  Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities held by the Council. It represents the remaining
contractual cashfiows (princlpal and interest) of financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period, excluding the impact of

netting agreements:
Oto1year 1toSyears OverS5years Total Carrying amount
contractual
cash flows
Noto $ $ $ $ $
2022
Trade and other payables 16 1,241,619 - - 1,241,619 1,241,619
1,241,619 - - 1,241,619 1,241,619
2021
Trade and other payables 16 1,048,091 - - 1,046,091 1,046,091
1,046,091 - - 1,046,091 1,046,091

The outfiows in the above table are not expacted to occur significantly earller or for significantly different amounts than indicated In
the table.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Counci’s income or the value of lts
holdings of financial instruments.

Interest rate rlsk
Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Councll Is exposed to interest rate rigk thraugh investments with Queensland Country Bank {(QCE).

Sensitivity
Sensitivity to Interest rate movements is shown for variable financlal assets based on the carrying amount at reporting date.

The Council does not account far any fixed-rate financial assets or financis! liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss,
therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

The following Interast rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to be
1%) would have on the profit and equity, based on the cammying values at the end of the reporting period. The calculation assumes
that the change In interest rates would be held constant over the period.

Net carrying Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity

Note amount 1%increase 1%decrease 1%increase 1% decrease
Council $ $ H $ $
2022
Cash balance ] 6,471,795 64,718 (64,718) 64,718 {64,718)
Net total 6,471,785 64,718 (64,718) 64,718 (64,718)
2021
Cash balance 9 8,433,920 84,339 (84,339) 84,339 {84,339)
Net total 8,433,920 84,339 (84,339) 84,339 (84,339)
Fair value

The fair valus of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less
any allowance for impairment.
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Transactions with related parties

(a) Transactions with key management personnel (KMP)
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

KMP include the Mayor, Councillors, Council's Chief Exscutive Officer and some exscutive management. The compensation paid to
KMP comprises:

2022 2021
Transaction Type $ $
Short-term employee benefits 779,347 970,555
Post-employment benefits 92,037 113,533
Long-term benefits 3,253 9,071
Total 874,637 1,093,159

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the annual report.

(b) Transactions with other related parties

Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entiies controlled or jointly controlled by KMP or their close
family members. Close family members include a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse.

2022 2021

Details of Transaction Additional Information $ $
Employee expenses for close family "
members of key management personnel 26(b)(3) 245,845 433.282
Purchase of materials and services from
close family members of KMP or entities
owned and/or controlled by the close 26(b)H) 9.1 9,850
family members
Key management services provided by ;
Peak Services 26(b)(i) 382,241
Fees and charges paid to entitles controlled .
by KMP 26(b)(iv) 59,373
Sale and other income charges to related 26(b)(v) 66.721 ;
parties

(i) Al close family members of key management personnel were employed through an arm’s length process. They are paid in
accordance with the Award for the job they perform.

Council employs 61 (2021: 63) staff of which 7 (2021: 8) are close family members of key management personnel.

(i) Council purchased material and services from entities that are controlled by members of key management personnel. All
purchases were at amrm’s length and were in the normal course of Council operations.

{iif) Counci! has appointed 2 interim CEOs during the year under the arrangement with Peak Services. These amount have been
excluded from the KMP remuneration disclosure in the above.

(iv) Council paid Ruguupyne Aboriginal Corporation for native title compensation on land used by Council in accordance with the
agreement signed by both parties.

(v) Income generated from fees and charges, rent and income provided to KMP, close family members and controlled entity were on
am's length basis and in accordance with Councll's schedule of fees and charges.
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26

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances
Council held no outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties.

(d) Loans and guarantees te/from related parties

Council is prohibited by the Local Government Act 2009 from making loans or guarantees to related parties other than entities
under the Council control. No loans guarantess or bonds were entered into for the year ended 30 June 2022.

{e) Commitments toffrom other related parties

Council has nil commitments to or from other related parties as at balance date.

{f) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the entities and people that are related parties of council live and operate within the Mapoon Abpriginal Council Shire.
Therefore, on a regular basis ordinary citizen transactions occur between Council and its related parties. Some examples include:

- Payment of gas bottles
- Dog registration
- Provision of services

Council has not Included these types of transaction in Its disclosure, where they are made on the same terms and conditions
available to the general public.
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Management Certificate
For the year ended 30 June 2022

These general purpese financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 178 and 177 of the Loce) Government Regulation 2012
(the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Govemment Act 2009 and Local Gavemment Regulation 2012 for the establishment and keeping
of accounts have been complled with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financial stalements, as set out on pages 1 to 34, present a true and fair view, In accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year.

G B -

Mayor Chigf Executive Officer
Alleen Addo Thorhas Smith
pete 13!;0(11 pete 1% !10!21
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To councillors of Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

| have audited the financial report of Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council.
In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2022, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor
and Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of
my report.

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity's annual report.

At the date of this auditor's report, the available other information in Mapoon Aboriginal Shire
Council’'s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022 was the current year financial
sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with the Local Government Act, 2009, the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and the Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
the councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations of the council.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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) Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2022:
a) | received all the information and explanations | required.

b) I consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and
keeping of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Local Government Act 2009, any other Act and the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The applicable requirements include those for keeping financial records that correctly record
and explain the council’s transactions and account balances to enable the preparation of a
true and fair financial report.

Oé"j 31 October 2022

Lisa Fraser Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Councillors of Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Mapoon
Aboriginal Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2022, comprising the statement,

explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief
Executive Officer.

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Mapoon Aboriginal
Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2022 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial
sustainability statement section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity’s annual report.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Mapoon Aboriginal Shire
Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022 was the general purpose financial
statements and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the current year financial sustainability
statement

The councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The councillors responsibility also includes such internal control as the councillors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is
accurately calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratios, nor on the council’s future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Oé;f«av 31 October 2022

Lisa Fraser Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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